BRIEF OF APPELLANT THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The court of appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY court of Common Pleas

Charles B. Simmons Jr

C.A. No.: 2020-CP-23-00939

Appellate Case No. 2020-001699

Kenneth Curtis, Respondent,

v.

Cynthia J. Glenn, Appellant,

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Cynthia J. Glenn by invitation,
Su Juris.
Sandy@carolinawaterbirth.com
579 W. Circle Rd
Gray court, South Carolina [29645]
(864) 329-0010

BRIEF OF APPELLANT THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The court of appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY court of Common Pleas

Charles B. Simmons Jr

C.A. No.: 2020-CP-23-00939

Appellate Case No. 2020-001699

Kenneth Curtis, Respondent,

v.

Statement of Issues on Appeal

1. Does Master-In-Equity (MIE) court have the authority or jurisdiction to supersede orders made in magistrate court and rule against the prevailing party without an appeal?
2. Did the MIE court accepted matters of this complaint without proper authority and without proper counsel?
3. Did Curtis, with the assistance of Simmons, re-litigate issues already decided in the lower court? Did this also involve Collateral Estoppel by Judgment, preclusion and legal harassment?
4. Did Common Pleas fail to rule on the one issue of reference, the public's right to visit the cemetery? Since cemeteries on private land are the jurisdiction of magistrate court and that court had already ruled that Curtis had opened his land to the public, did the court neglect its duty by not ruling upon the public's access to the cemetery?
5. Did the court confuse and blend properties that were not part of the original conflict and reference from magistrate court and thereby not resolve the issues surrounding the advertised cemetery located at 177 Edwards Rd?
6. Was it ethical for Judge Charles Simmons to preside over a case in which he was already intimately involved with the Plaintiff and with whom he had also befriended?
7. Was it ethical for the court to rule against Glenn with threats of excessive fines that do not match criminal standards and jail time despite her being the prevailing party on all counts?

8. Since Glenn is not an attorney and is thereby not able to represent the public's rights, did Greenville County and the Attorney General's office fail in their duty to intervene in this case when requested and when a proper motion was filed?
9. Did magistrate court error in filing a motion of reference after Curtis brought new issues at a Motion for Clarification hearing when he had not brought the issues previously or appealed any ruling?

Statement of the Case

1. Between 2003-2008, there was an extensive court battle over the ownership of the property located at 113 Edwards Rd, known as TOMAR. Judge Charles Simmons presided over these hearings and deemed TOMAR to be the Curtis family cemetery. (pg. 20)
2. December 30, 2010, 177 Edwards Rd was deeded to Kenneth Curtis as a Charitable Gift for the benefit of Saluda Rest to be used as a natural burial preserve. Curtis testified that he operated Saluda Rest as a non-profit charity. (pg. 172, 220)
3. December 2018, Cynthia Glenn acquired rights to bury her husband at a location advertised as Saluda Rest Natural Preserve and Burial located at 177 Edwards Rd, Marietta SC. A sum of money was demanded for this service which Curtis now calls a gift. Glenn and many family members and friends were told that they had full access to the cemetery during daylight hours, but when Glenn and family tried to visit the grave they were turned away, met with harassment, asked to give 'donations' and accused of causing damage. The police were called who verified there was no damage.

4. June 2019, Police informed Curtis that Glenn should have access to the burial grounds of her husband. Curtis filed a suit against Glenn in magistrate court.
5. November 22, 2019, an order was issued giving Glenn access to the cemetery for six consecutive hours to begin no later than 11:00 a.m. and to end no earlier than 4:00 p.m. Curtis maliciously interpreted the order to allow Glenn access only on February 29th, leap day, once every four years.
6. A clarifying order was issued on December 6, 2019, but Glenn was never notified of this order and did not become aware of its existence until long after the second order to clarify was issued.
7. A motion for clarification of the November 22, 2019 order was filed by Glenn on December 15, 2019 (after the order had already been clarified on December 6, 2019). At this hearing, Despite Curtis having been the one to originally file a complaint in magistrate court regarding Saluda Rest as a private cemetery, he brought new issues regarding the magistrate courts ability to rule on the designation of that same property.
8. A second amended order was issued January 15, 2020. This order clarified that visitation hours must be at least weekly. Additionally, the magistrate court ordered,
"I find that the Plaintiff has opened his property to the public for use as a cemetery. As a result, the Plaintiff owes a duty to the families of those buried in his cemetery to allow them to visit their family member's graves. Therefore, the Plaintiff shall set standard weekly visitation hours for which the Defendant may visit the graves on Plaintiffs property."

....A dispute exists as to whether the Plaintiff's property is a cemetery. The determination of the Plaintiff's property as a cemetery is beyond the jurisdiction of this court; therefore the Plaintiff is ordered to file an action with the Circuit court to determine Plaintiff's status as a cemetery. If the Plaintiff fails to make such a filing with Circuit court within 30 days of the date of the Order, the posted visitation schedule shall apply to all members of the public in addition to the Defendant." (pg. 65)

9. An Order of Reference was sent to masters-in-equity court. (pg. 83)
10. Curtis never filed an action in the Circuit court pertaining to his status as a cemetery as it relates to the public in general as required by the magistrate order. Instead he filed another suit against Glenn on Feb 14, 2020 with the same issues already ruled upon in magistrate court. In addition, he later asked for pain and suffering compensation from Glenn for his incarceration for contempt. An appeal has not been filed from Curtis for any rulings.
11. Masters-in-equity accepted the filing from Curtis.
12. March 5, 2020 a Rule to Show Cause hearing was held in magistrate court and Curtis was arrested for violating court orders and continuing to deny Glenn access to the cemetery.
13. Glenn filed and prevailed in a Motion to Dismiss in part on July 7, 2020 (pg. 90) regarding the masters-in-equity complaint. Of it's own accord, the Court also issued mutual restraining orders:
 - a. *"Based upon the evidence presented, the court rules that any issues that occurred between the parties prior to January 15, 2020 (the date of Judge Sutherlin's Order) may not be re-litigated in this court. Further, the court imposed a mutual restraining*

BRIEF OF APPELLANT GLENN

order, punishable by a minimum sanction/fine of \$500.00 per violation and/or jail, against any harassment or interference by and between the parties, directly or indirectly.” (pg. 118)

14. August 2020, Defendant and other family members tried to visit the grave only to find that Curtis had dug a grave-shaped pit in the driveway blocking all access to the cemetery. The pit was open, but a headstone was placed at one end of the opening. Digging of the pit should have been deemed contempt by Curtis by both the Magistrate and Common Pleas orders. An emergency injunction was ordered by Magistrate court forbidding Curtis from interring a body into the open pit and ordered to remain in effect until all issues were addressed in the court of Common Pleas. Rulings on a Rule to Show Cause were deferred (pg. 178).
15. Despite the MIE Order to Dismiss from July 7, a hearing occurred on October 13, 2020 before the judge Charles Simmons. At that time the only portion of testimony related to events occurring after Jan 15, 2020 (per the order) were related to the incident of the pit blocking access to the cemetery which had also been tried in Magistrate Court.
16. The hearing lasted in excess of 8 hours. Testimony primarily related to incidents prior to Jan 15, 2020 and to the Curtis home located at 113 Edwards Rd (TOMAR) where his mother was buried in a family plot and not to the cemetery in question; Saluda Rest Natural Preserve and Burial at 177 Edwards Rd.
17. The court did not comply with the order dismissing all issues already ruled upon in the lower court and continued to entertain testimony and evidence that re-tried the magistrate court case.

18. Despite the facts that **no appeal** had ever been filed from magistrate court and that a Common Pleas Order had dismissed all matters of the complaint; the final Order in this case dated October 29, 2020 stated:

“This order shall supersede and overrule any previous orders or rulings related to these matters between the Plaintiff and Defendant.”(pg. 150)

19. The court failed to rule upon the public’s access to the cemetery located at 177 Edwards Rd, the only true issue before the court.

20. The court ruled in favor of Glenn on the contempt related to the open pit blocking all access to the cemetery (pg.47, 150) but did not issue any relief to Glenn nor sanctions to Curtis. Instead the court issued a restraining order against Glenn with excessive fines of **\$5,000 or jail time**(pg. 177).

21. Glenn filed a motion for intervention since she is not an attorney and had no ability to represent the public in this matter (pg. 48; 122). She served it upon both Plaintiff’s attorney and the Attorney General’s office. That motion was denied (pg. 46).

Standard of Review

1. Abuse of discretion - Judge Charles Simmons had already presided over a prolonged case regarding property of Kenneth Curtis. He should have recused himself but instead allowed the two cases and two properties to merge allowing his conflict to prejudice the case (pg. 20; 221).
2. Plain error - An appeal was never filed by Curtis and therefore the court of Common Pleas had no jurisdiction to supersede the rulings of the lower court. The court of Common Pleas also erred when they did not rule upon the public's interest in the cemetery, the sole issue referred by magistrate court.
3. Question of law - The issue as to a person's right to claim non-profit status without qualification, sell to the public, solicit bodies from the county morgues and operate a cemetery without a license because he uses the term "natural burial" appears to be a de novo issue before the state and applies to the public's interest in this matter (pg. 158; 259; 299-310)

Argument

1) Res Judicata - Under the rules of res judicata, when a timely appeal has not been filed, the court of Common Pleas does not have the authority or jurisdiction to supersede orders made in magistrate court and rule against the prevailing party. The court of Common Pleas re-litigated the same case, as it related to Glenn, which had already been tried in magistrate court (pg. 64) . The court's failures put the financial and emotional burden upon Glenn to retry a case in which she had already prevailed. Res judicata applies where there is identity of parties, identity of subject matter, and an adjudication of the issue in the former suit. *Lowe v. Clayton*, 264 S.C. 75, 212 S.E. (2d) 582 (1975). A litigant is barred from raising any issues which were adjudicated in the former suit and any issues which might have been raised in the former suit. *Wold v. Funderburg*, 250 S.C. 205, 157 S.E. (2d) 180 (1967).

Although Glenn prevailed in her Motion to Dismiss in part, the decision of the court was ignored and the case was re-litigated by the same judge who had dismissed it. The court did not acknowledge the order dismissing all issues already ruled upon in the lower court and continued to entertain testimony and evidence that re-tried the magistrate court case despite objections made by Glenn.

Despite the facts that **no appeal** had been filed from magistrate court and that a Common Pleas Order had dismissed all matters of the complaint; the final Order in this case dated October 29, 2020 stated:

“This order shall supersede and overrule any previous orders or rulings related to these matters between the Plaintiff and Defendant.”(pg.150)

- 2) Collateral estoppel or preclusion state that once a court has decided an issue of fact or law necessary to its judgment, that decision precludes re-litigation of the issue in a suit on the same or different cause of action involving a party to the first case. The court's failure to protect Glenn's rights resulted in legal harassment overuse and abuse of judicial resources and extreme pain and suffering for petitioner. *56 Harv. L. Rev. 1 (1942-1943) and Ford v. Ford, 371 U.S. 187, 194 (1962)*
- 3) The Doctrine of Privity of Contract - also applies. The Law Of Claim Preclusion in South Carolina would bar Plaintiff's re-litigation of her Constitutional claims under the principles of claim preclusion, a final judgment on the merits in a prior action will absolutely bar the parties and their privies from litigating in a subsequent action issues actually litigated and issues that could have been raised in the first action. *Briggs v. Newberry County School Dist., 838 F. Supp. 232 (D.S.C. 1992)*
- 4) No Jurisdiction Without An Appeal - Curtis did not file an appeal to the case from magistrate court, therefore the court of Common Pleas did not have jurisdiction to supersede the rulings of the lower court.

RULE 203 NOTICE OF APPEAL (b) Time for Service. (1) appeals From the court of Common Pleas. A notice of appeal shall be served on all respondents within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of entry of the order or judgment.

Despite no appeal having been submitted, the court accepted Curtis' request to supersede prior court orders. In an Affidavit to the court of Common Pleas regarding Magistrate court sentencing for contempt for ongoing refusal to allow Glenn access to her husband's gravesite. Curtis states:

“He (Kenneth Curtis) considers the punishment to be far in excess of what is or was just and proper, and believes the punishment to be cruel and unusual...Kenneth Curtis begs and prays, that this court will grant him equitable relief from the continued abuse of process by the Defendant and deny her access to his property, nullify the previous court order...”

MIE court accepted matters of this complaint without proper authority and without proper counsel. Any action that was separate from the plaintiff's equitable property related to the public's access and the designation of cemetery was a matter for another court, but any matter related to the public entitled the public to fair representation. *U.S. Constitution Annotated, Right to Trial by Jury and proper counsel.*

- 5) No clarification of issues - Defendant was not allowed an opening or closing statement and in so doing there was no clarity as to the exact issue or property in question (pg. 336. The court did not acknowledge the order dismissing all issues already ruled upon in the lower court and continued to entertain testimony and evidence that re-tried the magistrate court case
- 6) Full and Fair Hearing - Defendant was not allowed an opening or closing statement in full accord with due process despite her explicit request. (pg. 122; 225)
- 7) Error of Fact - The hearing lasted in excess of 8 hours and Curtis' case focused substantially on his home property located at 113 Edwards Rd (TOMAR) where his mother was buried in a family plot and not to the cemetery in question; Saluda Rest Natural Preserve and Burial deeded "Saluda Rest f/b/o Kenneth Curtis." Curtis argued

that his home parcel was the property in question and testified that this alternate location was the burial site.

The home parcel has never been in dispute and Glenn has never asked to visit that property nor was it a part of the magistrate case reference or any public testimony. Although Glenn objected to the error of facts and exhibits, the court allowed the testimony and exhibits and subsequently made rulings upon the wrong property; a property unrelated to the magistrate court reference or the burial grounds of Glenn's husband. The two properties have separate entrances almost a mile apart, are deeded in different names, and have separate deeds and map #'s in the Greenville County tax index.

By encompassing property located at 113 Edwards Rd whose use was were never disputed, the Court's mistake of facts nullified the true nature of 177 Edwards Rd.

8) Trial by Jury - Glenn was denied a jury trial by her peers. Special reference was made by the magistrate judge specifically to a masters-in-equity (MIE) court on issues related to the public's access to the cemetery (pg.83). Masters-in-equity court does not hold jury trials and their ruling encompassed more than just equitable division as evidenced by rulings of excessive fines and loss of freedom. Glenn has not waived her right to a trial by jury and the consequences of complaints filed against Glenn far exceeded the amount of \$20.00 and entitle Glenn full access to a trial by jury.

9) The Public's Interest Was Not Served - The public's interest was not adequately represented by Glenn. Glenn is not an attorney or a defender of the public interest and should not have been given the burden nor the responsibility of representing the public in this case. At best she might have been called as a witness in a trial conducted by

representatives of the state or Greenville County. The public is also entitled to fair representation in such matters, therefore, the public was denied their right to counsel, *U.S. Constitution Annotated, Right to Trial by Jury and proper counsel.*

Although both Greenville County and the Attorney General's offices were notified, they both failed to intervene as allowed by Rule 24 of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. Rule 24, SC. The Attorney General has broad statutory and common law authority in his capacity as the chief legal officer of the State to institute actions involving the welfare of the State and its citizens, including vindication of wrongs committed collectively against the citizens of the State. *See Condon v. Hodges, 349 S.C. 232, 562 S.E.2d 623 (2002); State v. Beach, 271 S.C. 425, 248 S.E.2d 115 (1978).* Additionally, since Curtis is claiming to be a non-profit charity, the Attorney General had specific statutory support for his intervention under his duty "to enforce the application of funds given or appropriated to public charities." *Id.* at 515, 93 S.E.2d at 925 (quoting S.C.Code §§ 1-240 (1952)). (pg. 122)

10)Right to Counsel – By superseding the magistrate order thereby striking the public's right to the cemetery from the ruling and then forcing Glenn to continue with a case regarding complaints that should have determined the public's access, the MIE effectively denied the public access without a fair hearing. In so doing, the Public was denied proper counsel. Curtis is now allowed to sell to the public but visiting the remains of loved ones placed upon the property, a perpetual and inalienable right, are being denied to the public. *U.S. Constitution Annotated, Right to Trial by Jury and proper counsel.*

11) Grossly Severe Sentencing - Although Glenn prevailed in the Rule to Show Cause

Motion regarding the pit dug in the path to the cemetery prevented her access to her husband's gravesite, she was sentenced as though she had lost the argument and threatened with jail time and excessive fines of \$5,000. The Eighth Amendment prohibits sentences which are grossly out of proportion to the severity of the crime.

YeARGIN v. South Carolina Dep't of Highways & Pub. Transp., 313 S.C. 387, 438 S.E.2d 234 (1993).

Glenn was entitled to relief for Curtis's violations, for cruel and unusual treatment and for being denied access to her husband's burial site by Curtis, but instead was sanctioned without any relief which has allowed Curtis to continue to deny Glenn access to this day based upon frivolous accusations with real threats of imprisonment.

Conclusion

Magistrate court erred by allowing Curtis to bring new issues after completion of trials and by making a reference to Common Pleas without an appeal. Court of Common Pleas exceeded their authority by ruling on issues not before the court and overturning the proper rulings of magistrate court. Common Pleas did not grant Glenn relief despite her being a prevailing party, but merely exasperated and fueled Curtis's contempt by granting him the ability to imprison Glenn. The issue of public access was not resolved.

Therefore; this Appellant asks that these rulings be dismissed; that prior Magistrate Court Orders granting Glenn, the wife of Mark James Guion and a living person, be restored; and that the public also have the same access as ordered; that Curtis be subject to contempt charges in Magistrate Court for not filing a proper complaint with Masters-in-Equity court for issues of the public as ordered by the lower court; and that Magistrate Court be allowed to rule upon the Rule to Show Cause filings related to the open pit. Petitioner seeks relief as appropriate.

Signed this date _____, 2023

Autograph of
Cynthia J. Glenn,
Su Juris.
Sandy@carolinawaterbirth.com
579 W. Circle Rd
Gray court, South Carolina [29645]
(864) 329-0010

Designation of Matter

1. TOMAR Order (pg.20)
2. ORDER AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING THE NOVEMBER 22,2019 AND DECEMBER 6,2019 ORDERS Jan 15, Case number 2020 2019CV2311101849 & 2019OR2311100028 IN THE SUMMARY COURT (pg. 46)
3. Common Pleas complaint Feb 14, 2020 (pg. 52)
4. Defendant's Motion to Dismiss in Part (pg. 90)
5. Plaintiff's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Dismiss in Part (pg. 94)
6. Curtis Motion to Amend and opposition of Glenn Motion for new trail and NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO ALTER OR AMEND Nov 5, 2020 (pg. 105)
7. Affidavit of Curtis in Response to Motion to Dismiss July 2, 2020 (pg. 113)
8. Order to Dismiss in Part July 7, 2020 (pg.118)
9. Defendant's Amended Motion for New Trial and Intervention Nov 9, 2020 (pg. 122)
10. Defendant's Rule to show cause for grave in driveway in magistrate court Sept 27, 2020 (pg. 168)
11. Common Pleas Order denial of intervention and new trial Nov 17, 2020 (pg.139)
12. Deed to 177 Edwards Rd and 113 Edwards Rd (pg. 172)
13. Curtis letter to Simmons (191)
14. Transcripts in part
 - a. July 7, 2020 HONORABLE CHARLES B. SIMMONS, JR., MASTER IN EQUITY (pg. 193)
 - b. October 13, 2020 HONORABLE CHARLES B. SIMMONS, JR., MASTER IN EQUITY (pg. 215)