In The court of appeals

100023

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY court of Common Pleas

Charles B. Simmons Jr

C.A. No.: 2020-CP-23-00939

Appellate Case No. 2020-001699

RECEIVED

OCT 12 2023

SC Court of Appeals

Kenneth Curtis,

Respondent,

v.

Cynthia J. Glenn,

Appellant,

Motion to Reconsider / Extend Filing Deadline Dates for Appellant

Until Appellant was copied on a deficiency letter from this court addressed to Mr. Curtis and dated September 27, 2023; Appellant had no knowledge of ANY filings regarding this case by Mr. Curtis. Upon further investigation, eight filings have been submitted to the court without any service to the Appellant.

This case could not be a better example as to why the Checklist was created and ordered to all Magistrates by the South Carolina Chief Justice.

If Magistrate Southerlin had properly used this simple Checklist (SCCA/681) as required by Supreme Court Order, it would have been quickly and obviously apparent that Glenn had not met, and adamantly had no intention to meet, the most basic statutory obligation of a petitioner party in Question #3, *Has "The Petitioner made a proper written request, pursuant to SC Code Section 27-43-310 for access to a cemetery, burial ground or grave, located on land owned or occupied by the respondent."*

It is a requirement of the statute cited that a written request be made by any petitioner for access to a burial ground located on private property be sent to that owner seeking appropriate visitation access, and giving owner the opportunity to give reasonable times and conditions for visitation.

Thereby, protecting the private property rights of owners as well as rights of petitioners with enforceable written documentation.

To date, Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) has refused to acknowledge a need for owner permission for entry, claiming public cemetery open access applies to Saluda Rest private property. Glenn has never sent any such required written access request to Saluda Rest or Respondent (Curtis).

Neither has Greenville County Magistrate Sutherlin used, completed, or filed the required South Carolina Supreme Court issued Checklist when deciding this case, or forwarding the case to any upper court as required by Supreme Court order.

This case could and should have been easily and finally adjudicated in Magistrate Court. It most certainly would have been, had the Magistrate heeded the plain requirement of both statute and Supreme Court Order. Instead regrettably, the Magistrate chose to entertain the narcissistic, premature, inflated, and conflated public cemetery arguments of Glenn Pro Se into the court.

Magistrate Southerlin then issued multiple orders, that would have changed title, and made public, the private properties of Saluda Rest and Kenneth Curtis, (an action clearly outside of Magistrate fiat authority),

thereby emboldening Glenn and setting in motion this unnecessary, costly and protracted case.

After objection and (motion by attorney for Respondent (Curtis)), a Clarification of Order hearing was held in Magistrate court.

Magistrate Sutherlin, recognizing the private property issues beyond his authority, *ordered* the Respondent (Curtis) to Master In Equity Court under the Hon. Charles B. Simmons Jr.

Respondent (Curtis) believes that Master In Equity Simmons was unquestionably and uniquely the best and only truly qualified judicial entity able to cut through the issues of this case, and sort out Magistrate Court errors. Master In Equity Simmons has previously visited and resolved ownership and boundary issues with the current properties of Saluda Rest. He is therefore well familiar with the ownership, history, boundaries, and purposes of the property as clearly reflected in his Masters Order in this case. The Master is not confused, nor unaware of, the adjoining synchronous nature of the two parcels as Appellant Glenn seems to be, or supposes the Master to be.

Respondent (Curtis) has never directly spoken to Master In Equity Simmons, outside of in court proceedings as a witness, nor has he any relationship with Master Simmons whatsoever.

Respondent (Curtis) believes this case to have been properly and completely resolved in Masters Court by The Hon. Charles B. Simmons Jr.

Respondent (Curtis) therefore prays this Court will order dismissal of all Appellant claims with prejudice to include an Order of Review issued to Appellant (Glenn), preventing Cynthia Glenn from further Pro Se court filing without court review for her vexatious conduct, therein returning all jurisdiction of any future issue between parties to the Master's Court and The Honorable Charles B. Simmons Jr.

END: [Respondent's Statement of Case]

Kenneth E. Curtis

Pro Se



113 Edwards Rd.

Marietta, South Carolina, 29661

(864) 884-9503

Respondent's Answer To Final Brief Of Appellant

BEGGING THIS COURTS INDULGENCE

Respondent (Kenneth Curtis) presenting Pro Se, asserts that all issues brought forth from Appellant (Cynthia Glenn) in her final brief have been properly, lawfully and meticulously addressed in the Master In Equity Order by the Hon. Charles B. Simmons Jr. in this case, and there are no legitimate issues whatsoever remaining for this Appellate Court to consider. Reference:

C.A. NO.: 2020-CP-23-00939 and Order issued by Master In Equity,
In The Court Of Common Pleas 13th Judicial Circuit,
Hon. Charles B. Simmons Jr. Signed 2020-10-29

To date Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) has failed to order or pay for a Full Transcript of the proceedings from Master In Equity Court as required by APPELLATE COURT RULES. Appellant Pro Se Glenn has instead filed a convoluted and fanciful motion regarding a full transcript with this Appellate Court implying some imagined holding "in abeyance due to a Federal case.", and seeking to proceed with a partial, contextually insufficient transcript that in no way complies with the rules required to proceed in this appeal or that allows Respondent (Curtis), to prepare a proper response or factually and contextually contest the Appellant's many false bald assertions and misrepresentations of witness testimonies as well as Master Simmons' statements made at trial. Respondent (Curtis) objects to this motion to proceed by Appellant Pro Se (Glenn).

Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) has served a Notice of Removal to Federal District Court wildly alleging civil rights violations in this case. This is clearly more than indication of Appellant (Glenn's) intention of pursuing a Federal case regardless of any decision of this or any South Carolina Court.

Essentially, Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) is asking to simultaneously try dual cases in both State and Federal courts and use her Federal court filings in order to excuse her failure to comply with the transcript rules of this South Carolina Court. Appellant Pro Se (Glenn's) case should be dismissed for failure to order, and make timely available, the Full Transcript from the Masters Court according to the plain rules of this South Carolina Court.

Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) outrageously and shockingly questions the ethics and motives of Master In Equity, The Hon. Charles B. Simmons in not recusing himself, then salaciously accuses him of being "intimately involved with [Ref. Appellant's Initial and Final Brief pg #4 items #5 & #6], and of "befriending" Respondent (Curtis).

Common language interpretation could only lead to a conclusion of a baseless and outrageously salacious accusation of illegal conduct against both Master In Equity, Hon. Charles B. Simmons and this Respondent (Curtis). Such repeated accusation and declaration in Appellant (Glenn's) briefs without any basis whatsoever, should never be tolerated by this Court, nor should it be left as a frivolous issue unaddressed directly by this Court.

IF this were Appellant Pro Se (Glenn's) only such malicious accusation against a South Carolina Judge sitting in one of Glenn's Pro Se court representations, it would be conduct outrageous enough to warrant sanction. However, it becomes exponentially more relevant and egregious if this Court considers that Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) has also very recently, directly, maliciously, egregiously and salaciously accused yet another respected Jurist, South Carolina Family Court Judge, The Hon. Rochelle Y. Conits, of ***Criminal "Distribution of Pornography to a Child"*** in repeated court filings,-

(Ref. United States Court Of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, No. 19-1555 (6:18-cv-01609-DCC) Cynthia Glenn Pro Se Plaintiff/Appellant and Mark Guion v. Defendants, Melissa Marsh, Rachelle Y. Conits, Rachel Hopkins, Brittany Van De Gohm, John Does 1-20, Jane does 1-20, XYZ 1-0, Entities and Agencies) and seeking millions of dollars in damages from Judge Conits directly. This Pro Se (Glenn) case was completely dismissed by MANDATE and JUDGEMENT, June 19, 2020.

Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) is clearly, demonstrably and provably a **Vexatious Litigant** by any legal standard. Appellant (Glenn) has grossly abused her many Pro Se indulgences and leniencies granted by previous Courts in order to harass, falsely accuse and abuse many innocent individuals as well as clog the courts with a plethora of cases Local, State, and Federal with wildly inappropriate filings and knowingly false statements. Accusations against public officials that are completely inappropriate, that would never be allowed any practicing Bar Licensed Attorney. Appellant (Glenn) knowingly presented false evidence in this case wildly accusing Respondent (Curtis) of being part of a "large Meth ring" and "ongoing criminal enterprise".

While Respondent (Curtis) recognizes and supports an individual right to self-representation, a person acting Pro Se must adhere to the same standards and rules as a Licensed Attorney. Any Licensed Attorney would surely be sanctioned by both Bar and Courts for conduct even remotely similar to that of Appellant Pro Se (Glenn). Therefore, Respondent (Curtis) asks this Court to issue not only a complete Order of Dismissal in this case, but that it review all filings and cases, (to include County, State, and Federal) filed and argued by Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) and issue a **Sanction of Review Order**,

barring Cynthia Glenn from henceforth entering into any legal proceedings Pro Se without the prior approval of this Court, and remand oversight and jurisdiction back to the Master In Equity regarding any and all future or remaining issues involved with this case and between parties.

Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) quite simply refuses to accept reason or any ruling, by any authority, that Saluda Rest Ministry properties are not a public interest of any kind, and in particular not a public cemetery. Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) continues unabatedly and repeatedly to insist that a "Public Interest" exists in the private properties of SALUDA REST MINISTRIES in spite of the unquestionable Jurisdiction and Order of the Master In Equity detailing that that no public interest exists in this Private Property. Cynthia Glenn has admittedly filed multiple factually false complaints in this regard with the South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, The South Carolina Cemetery Board and the South Carolina Attorney General's Office. All South Carolina agencies listed have, after completing their investigations, issued Letters of Complaint Dismissal [*Ref. South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation and South Carolina Cemetery Board, Office of Investigations and Enforcement, letter to Kenneth Curtis Dated 11-5-2020, re. case 2020-62*] against all of Glenn's public interest, as well as regulatory claims, with "well wishes" to the Respondent (Curtis) and Saluda Rest Ministries in "future endeavors."

Yet, appallingly and with flagrant disregard to all rulings, Appellant Pro Se (Glenn) continues to don her crusaders cape of public interest and supposed benevolent representation of a non-complaining public, with demands upon the South Carolina Attorney General's Office to intervene in a matter clearly outside of its purview and of no relevance to this case in any way. This Court should specifically bar any future public interest claims by Glenn in any Review Sanction it may impose against Appellant (Glenn), so prays Respondent Kenneth Curtis.

Proper relief was granted Glenn from the Masters Court, granting Glenn through gate vehicle access, visitation with 24 hour notice and a mutual restraining order.

Glenn has absolutely NOT been prevented or hindered in visitation to the gravesite of Mark Guion in any way whatsoever and Glenn has not presented any claim of such to the Master or law enforcement. Respondent (Curtis) has complied completely with the Order of Master In Equity, Simmons.

The issue of Glenn's, public access /public interest claim was fully addressed in the Masters Order when he ruled, Saluda Rest and the property of Kenneth Curtis to be private property and a cemetery on private property. This clear private property declaration and determination by the Masters Court, has been the Respondent (Curtis') claim and plea from the beginning of Magistrates court proceedings.

All Magistrate Court issues of Glenn's were fully addressed by the Masters Order and Jurisdiction.

In conclusion:

Saluda Rest Ministries and Kenneth Curtis have been performing natural burials as part of ministry for over twenty years using the entirety of our private adjoining properties. Over 75 whole body burials and dozens of cremains scatterings/burials have been done at Saluda Rest properties with zero complaint of any kind. The only exception being that of Appellant Cynthia Glenn.

Proper relief having already been granted Glenn by the Master, it is clear by her lack of actual grave visitation and her conflated court filings that Glenn's obvious motive is to punish and abuse Respondent (Curtis) with endless regulatory agency and court filings. Respondent Kenneth Curtis therefore prays this court to, dismiss with prejudice Appellant Cynthia Glenn's appeal in entirety, and issue an Order of Review to Glenn preventing her from further Pro Se filings without this courts review and approval.

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

In The Court Of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY, COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

The Hon. Charles B. Simmons Jr.

Master In Equity

C.A No. 2020-CP-23-00939

Appellate Case No.2020-001699

Kenneth Curtis, Respondent

v.

Cynthia Glenn, Appellant

Motion: Requesting Permission to Serve and File Respondent's Final Brief outside of filing deadlines {ref. Rule 208 and 209 S.C Appellate Court Rules.

Whereas, Respondent's attorney of record Michael Dodd Esq. has resigned representation of Respondent Kenneth Curtis in this case therein causing unavoidable preparation delays, Kenneth Curtis moves this court to extend Respondent's Final Brief outside of filing deadline and except this Respondent's Final Brief outside of deadlines, but within the ten day grace period set by rules 208 and 209



Kenneth E. Curtis,

Pro Se

Kenprivacypro@gmail.com

113 Edwards Rd.